Alex Gilbert-Bono

Architecture and Memory

Sites of memory in Providence 

East Side Rail Road Tunnel


It is rumored that if you were a Brown student in the 1970’s, studying in the basement of the Sci Li, you would be able to hear the echoing of freight trains from deep within college hill. Where were these ghost trains traveling? They were passing through the East Side Railroad Tunnel. The tunnel has not been in use since the early 1970’s, and both entrances have since been welded shut. Today, the tunnel’s east side entrance is easy to find—101 N. Main Street, behind Mill’s Tavern. However, the west side entrance requires more exploration. 
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East Entrance. (From artinruins.com)

The west portal is not accessible from the road, but is located in the woods off Gano Street. The path that once led to the tunnel is now overgrown and strewn with garbage and discarded debris. Casting aside the thorns, and avoiding the fallen shopping carts, one can begin to see the large steel cover. When the swamp seems to engulf the entire remnants of a path, the brush clears and there, situated among ruins of past memories, stands the gate. 
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The tunnel is quite large, for it was originally created for two sets of rails. Even today, the ruins of one track still remain. The track travels down through the Gano Street Dog Park, to the water, where it connects to the old, abandoned lift bridge on the Seakonk River. 


The tunnel is rather unconventional, for it is not so much in ruins; it is the surrounding environment that is more run-down.  The old stone arch appears to have aged gracefully, except for a small crack in its frame.  However, the threshold now houses everything from a rusty washing machine to a burnt-out car. 
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Despite its sturdy skeleton, its façade is ornately decorated with graffiti. The bottom half of the wall is layered with various tags, graffiti signatures. Most likely the west gate served as a canvas for RISD graffiti artists. It is considered one of the greatest insults to paint over another’s tag. As seen on the west entrance, there are few places that haven’t been painted over. One of the most distinctive tags is a portrait of the Blues Brothers on the right-facing buttress. The NiceKidNice.com website substantiates that the famous Providence graffiti artist, Tern, created this portrait. Unfortunately, not much about graffiti artists is published, but it is clear from various images, that the walls have undergone many transformations. In one of my recent photos, one can see that Tern returned later and placed his tag on another section of the buttress. 
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(From Nicekidnice.com)
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After one has excavated the graveyard of unwanted household appliances, and surveyed the graffiti, one notices the small plaque peeking out of a steel cover. Imprinted on the corner stone is the date 1908. Unquestionably, this is the date the tunnel was completed. However, planning for this tunnel started back in 1903. Providence wished to create easier excess to the downtown Union Station, and thus the city financed this two million dollar tunnel. The tunnel was also to provide easier, and faster train travel to Boston and New York. However, by the 1950’s, train routes had changed, and the tunnel was then used for freight trains only. In the 1980’s, use of the tunnel was discontinued altogether, and Union Station was taken over by Amtrak.  Shortly after the building of the Amtrak station, the tunnel was covered.  
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Although the city boarded the entrances to the tunnel, until only recently, it was relatively easy to break in. ArtInRuins.com is a website where people can post their experiences in the tunnel. For many teens, a major right of passage was to travel through the tunnel alone at night. Since the tunnel travels under College Hill, once inside, there is no light. And these teens were not the only ones to use the tunnel. It was accounted that many homeless people sought refuge in the tunnel. Sometimes, while traversing the tunnel, a teen would encounter these homeless men. It appears that no one was ever bothered by another person, and the encounters were all part of the adventure. 


For Brown and RISD students, the tunnel offered a great location for parties. A few people remember dressing up for Halloween and walking the tunnel at night. However, these small gatherings grew into a huge rave. In 1993, a large number of students gathered at the entrance of the tunnel to celebrate a “Satanic Ritual.” The students beat drums, fashioned bonfires, and chanted vehemently, deep into the night. The police came to break up the rave, however, the students were persistent, and a large fight erupted. The police used tear gas and bricks to break up the party. It is said that the entrances were then welded shut because of the events that transpired at this rave. 


The great rave was not the last account of a raging party at the mouth of the tunnel. As stated earlier, a burnt-out car sits in ruins at the west gate. Allegedly, some La Salle students held a graduation party outside the tunnel, where they proceeded to burn the car. 
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Since so many memories surround this mysterious tunnel, the people of Providence have not forgotten it. Their memories rest in their discarded debris, their graffiti tags, and their on-line stories and anecdotes. Nonetheless, some feel it is a waste to leave the tunnel to ruin and memory. Greater City: Providence started a section of their website title “Reboot,” where they have brainstormed new ways of reworking “poor urbanism.”  They propose to turn the two million dollar tunnel into a “light rail service.” Their plan includes more work than simply reopening the tunnel. They suggest building a massive elevated rail system to connect to the eastern portal. Their proposed project, as a whole, has a similar objective to the original purpose of the 1908 rail system—to connect East Providence to the East Bay and to other points in Massachusetts. 
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(From GCPVD.org)

If the City chooses to reopen the tunnel, the junkyard ruins, and the graffiti art will be lost to nothing more than memories. The ruins may be seen as an eyesore to some, but to many they are a source of our creative human spirit. The tunnel as it exists now—a rundown, graffiti-tattooed trash can—houses compelling urban art, and memories of brave rituals and raucous raves. These are not easily forgotten.  They are pieces that people have left behind; and they are now part of the urban history of Providence. 
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